1956

# State of Utah v. Brack Howard Noble : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

**STATEMENT OF FACTS**

This is an appeal from a jury verdict and judgment entered thereon awarding the defendants Noble the sum of \$150,000.00 together with interest, exclusive of costs and to the date of judgment, in the further sum of \$7,321.05. The verdict stems from a condemnation proceeding com-

menced by the State of Utah through its Road Commission for the taking of approximately eight and a fraction acres of land for highway purposes situate in Salt Lake and Davis Counties, Utah. Trial was had in the Third Judicial District Court in and for Salt Lake County, commencing on the 3rd day of April, 1956, the Honorable Joseph G. Jeppson, Judge, presiding. The State Road Commission had secured an Order of Immediate Occupancy on the 22nd of July, 1955, and at the time of the trial the improvements on the land had been removed and actual construction of the road bed was in progress; this made it impossible for the jury upon a view of the premises to observe the property in its original condition at the time of the taking. The importance of this fact will be made clear to this Court later in this brief.

By stipulation and motion to dismiss the defendants Elmo England and E. J. Huber were eliminated from the cause (R. 97, 98, 99); the Pacific Mutual Life Assurance Company filed its answer (R. 19) and amended answer (R. 35) asserting its note and mortgage as against the defendants Noble. The Pre-trial Order (R. 32, 33) limited the issues to the question of damages. The State's Motion for New Trial (R. 76) was denied (R. 78). Notice of appeal from the judgment and the whole thereof was, by your appellant, timely filed (R. 93).

At the trial the State first placed into evidence its Exhibit 1, a map of the land to be condemned (R. 108-112); thereafter the defendants Noble undertook the burden of proving the quantum of damages for the taking. This, we think the record shows, the defendants failed to do.

First witness for the defendants, Albert Z. Richards, (R. 112) stated that he was a civil engineer with a B. S. Degree, 1939, from the University of Utah; that he had been hired by the defendants in November of 1955 to cross section the area of the property condemned and to determine the quantity and quality of the materials to be found thereon (R. 114); that he employed a driller and supervised the drilling operations. The witness concluded that there were one million two hundred ninety nine thousand and eight hundred fifty eight tons of material (1,299,858) in the tract of which 355,222 tons was "muck" sand and 944,646 tons a mixture of sand and gravel (R. 123). On cross examination the witness testified that he could estimate within 10% [after the drilling of but four test holes] how much material in cubic yards there was beneath the surface of the eight-acre tract (R. 134); but the witness also was of the opinion that gravel mining was pretty much like gold mining and that one does not know what is there until he gets there (R. 212).

Second witness for the defense was Brack Howard Noble, one of the owners of the property being condemned (R. 136). The witness testified as to when he acquired the property; as to the improvements thereon; as to the businesses he conducted thereon, i. e., sand and gravel, trailer court and the selling of antiques (R. 138). Over plaintiff's objection (R. 147) defendants' Exhibit No. 28, colored photo, was admitted in evidence (R. 151). Defendants' Exhibits 29 to 41 inclusive, colored photos (R. 164), were offered and admitted over plaintiff's objection (R. 165). The witness was permitted to testify, (a) as to his income



from the property—1947 to 1951, \$5,000.00 per year; (R. 155); 1952, \$9,702.00; 1953, \$14,221.85; 1954, \$16,436.00; 1955, \$20,056.55 (R. 156); (b) as to its value, \$300,000.00; (R. 163) and (c) that as long as he lived he could net \$20,000.00 per year therefrom (R. 163). On cross examination the witness stated that the value of the sand and gravel would be approximately \$200,000.00 (R. 168); he had some difficulty in explaining how he arrived at that figure (R. 169-171); the witness also had some trouble in accounting for the remaining \$100,000.00 in terms of valuation of the properties exclusive of the sand and gravel (R. 178-181). The witness admitted that the colors portrayed by the photos [Defendants' Exhibits 28 through 41] did not represent the true colors of the landscape (R. 185-187). The witness estimated that it would take him 15 years to dispose of the muck sand on the premises (R. 195), and admitted that in order to do so he would have to do better than he had done to date (R. 195).

Don R. Bass, next witness for the defendants (R. 195), testified that he was a driller for Boyle Brothers Drilling Company of Salt Lake City, Utah (R. 196); that he conducted the drilling of four test holes on the defendants' property and made explanation as to depth and kind of materials found (R. 195-201).

Fourth witness for the defendants was M. L. Schoenfeld. The witness was a sand and gravel operator. He testified as to the nature of the sand and gravel materials, their uses, the demand for, the price of, and as to the existing supply (R. 217-239). The witness stated that there was a severe shortage of muck sand (R. 225), however, on cross

examination, this witness said he had not sold over 30,000 tons of sand in 1955 nor over 50,000 tons in 1954 (R. 231); the witness admitted that if 100,000 tons of sand and gravel per year *could* be sold off the Noble property, it would take 13 years to exhaust the supply (R. 232, 236). The witness stated that the value of the muck sand on the Noble property was 25c per ton in place (R. 222); that he would pay 25c for it (R. 228), at the same time admitting that under his lease agreement he was purchasing it for 10c per ton (R. 228); that under his former lease he had paid 10c per ton (R. 237). *He did not say what quantity of sand he would be willing to purchase, if any, from the defendants at 25c per ton.*

Fifth witness for the defendants was a Mr. Joseph P. Howa (R. 240). This witness was qualified as an expert; he was a "civil engineer" (R. 240), a "construction estimator" (R. 240); he was a "chief estimator" (R. 241); it had been his "responsibility to appraise structures already completed" and for six years "he had been building a reputation with architects in Salt Lake City" (R. 241); at the present moment he was *appraising* the Mayflower Apartments in Salt Lake City (R. 242). He had "estimated" the new Veterans Hospital in Salt Lake City (R. 242), he had "estimated" the Statler Hotel in Los Angeles (R. 242), he had *appraised* the Dixie Club on the Salt Lake-Davis County line (R. 242). At the present time, he was "Chief Managing Officer of the Inland Construction Company" (R. 261). On cross examination, he *was not an appraiser* (R. 258), he did not "evaluate property" (R. 262), he said appraisers used the "Dow Service" and the "Boggs System" in arriving

at the value of real property (R. 262). He could not explain the "Dow Service" method, because, "I do not appraise property" (R. 262). He did not know what text books appraisers used and he had never heard about "*McMichaels*" (R. 262, 3); he was working in conjunction with Mr. Edward M. Ashton (R. 263). The witness did not know what the *fair market value* of the home on the Noble property was, he did not know what a *willing purchaser* would pay for that home (R. 264); he had never claimed to be a "sand and gravel man" and he had *never claimed* to be an "appraiser of real property" (R. 265). These last denials were elicited from the witness on *re-direct* examination *after* the defense had qualified this witness as an *expert appraiser*. In this witness's opinion, the *value* of the Noble property was "between 250 and 275 thousand dollars" (R. 256), and the sand and gravel in place was worth \$175,000.00 (R. 261). *This witness did not testify at any place in the record as to what a willing purchaser, able to buy but not required to buy, would pay for the defendants' property, any or all of it!* (R. 240-269).

Thereafter, the defendants called two Salt Lake City realtors, Mr. Thomas E. Gaddis and Mr. Sherman D. Rideout, who were duly qualified as experts in the realty business.

Mr. Gaddis never did examine the house and buildings on the property and he did not go on the property prior to one week preceding the trial; he did not know anything about the property as of July, 1955 (R. 271). Over plaintiff's objection, the witness was permitted to testify as to the value of the property at the time of the taking, July

1955 (R. 271); of which he knew nothing. The witness declared:

“(1) That he was acquainted with what Mr. Richards told him as to the number of yards of sand, gravel and muck sand there was on the property (R. 273).

“(2) That he was acquainted with the figure [value] that Mr. Schoenfeld had set on the sand and gravel (R. 273).

“(3) That he had seen Mr. Howa’s blueprints and was acquainted with the *replacement values* of the buildings and improvements *as set by Mr. Howa* (R. 273).

“(4) That he had seen the pictures of the property which were in evidence” (R. 273, 4).

Then, the witness was asked what was intended to be a hypothetical question as to total value of the entire property, to which plaintiff made timely objection (R. 275). Thereafter the record reads as follows:

“Q. Now, Mr. Gaddis, the question that I ask you is as to whether or not—what you consider to be a fair market value of that property, based upon the idea that it would be the amount that a willing seller would be willing—who wasn’t under pressure—would be willing to sell it to a willing buyer, who was desirous of purchasing the whole property and wasn’t under pressure to do so and had the means to do so; what would you estimate would be the value of that property—the fair market value of that property—based upon that assumption?

“THE COURT: That is as of July 22, ’55?

“Q. As of July 22, ’55.

“A. The ground, I place \$44,625; the building, I didn’t see. I didn’t measure it, and, based entirely

on the *estimate* of your *estimator* here, he says it is worth \$40,999.

"THE COURT: Mr. Gaddis, you are not correctly quoting him; he didn't say that; he said it would cost so much to replace it.

"A. To replace it.

"THE COURT: *He didn't give any estimate as to market value.*

"MR. MAW: But he stated the depreciation.

"MR. BUDGE: That still isn't the market value.

"A. You are asking me to make an assumption—

"Q. That's right.

"A. —based on the value of the property, of the value of the improvements on—in July, last year—

"Q. Yes.

"A. —is that right?

"Q. That is correct.

"THE COURT: Now, the 'improvements' isn't quite it. He wants to know the market value of the entire piece of property; and I am not sure that you can take the value of the land, then the value of the improvements, and add them together. They may not be the same. Sometimes the combination makes it more or less.

"A. It is very vital to go into that point. If he assumes that the value of that property is \$40,000—I didn't see that property last week—but, if I can assume that the valuation is correct, I would add that to the value of the ground.

"Q. You may assume that.

"A. Can I assume that?

"Q. Yes.

"THE COURT: No, that isn't the value, according—

"MR. BUDGE: No.

"THE COURT: You must assume that the replacement value is so much, and that the buildings have depreciated in the amount of \$4,000, then your testimony would be based on the accuracy of that, together with your own judgment.

"A. *I can not form a judgment on the buildings that have been taken away, sir.*

"THE COURT: You have to bear in mind that replacement value is not market value, and replacement value, less depreciation, may or may not be market value.

"Q. May I ask you another question with respect to that?

"A. Yes, sir.

"Q. And make your calculations, assuming that the replacement value of those buildings was \$44,795, and that, in the opinion of the appraiser—the engineer—there is \$4,000 depreciation, then, considering your own experience with respect to such buildings and the information that—the impressions that you have *from the pictures that you have seen*—assuming that, what would be the value of the whole property?

"A. Of the whole property? When it comes to the gravel, can I assume—I am not a gravel man—I am not a gravel contractor—I am not a gravel anything; assuming that the information that I have, in talking to your engineer, assume that there are 355,222 tons of muck and sand, which he values at twenty-five cents an acre, and 964,646 tons of gravel at ten cents an acre—

"Q. Not an "acre"; do you mean a ton?

"A. Per ton, I mean—I beg your pardon—the total value of the sand and gravel would be \$183,269. Now, to sum up the ground value that I placed—

"THE COURT: *Just a moment, that value is what these witnesses said it was worth in place, but that doesn't say what you could sell the property for with that much in place.*

"A. That is true.

"THE COURT: Your problem is, what would it sell for under the conditions that Mr. Maw described, of a willing seller and willing buyer.

"A. *Assuming the figures are correct, I would say that the total value of the property—this is an assumption only—hypothetical question, as I understand it—*

"Q. Correct.

"A. —would be \$270,768" (R. 276, 277, 278).

(Emphasis added.)

Mr. Rideout then said that a fair market value of the property would be \$270,000.00 (R. 286, 287); a stupendous difference of seven hundred sixty-eight dollars (\$768.00) and no cents. The testimony of the witness Rideout (R. 280-288) was similar to that of the witness Gaddis and added nothing to the proof. The witness Rideout had no knowledge of the property nor its improvements as of July, 1955. By addition and multiplication, these witnesses arrived at a "value." At the conclusion of Mr. Rideout's testimony, the following took place:

"THE COURT: Mr. Rideout, you asked to be excused; you mean from the witness stand or courtroom?

"A. Both" (R. 288).

To this point in the record there is not one scintilla of evidence as to the "best and highest use" to which the property could be placed and not an iota of evidence as to what a willing purchaser, able to buy but not compelled to buy, would have paid for the Noble property on July 22, 1955, the date of the order of occupancy. The defendants rest.

The State called Sherman Burton, resident engineer on the project, who testified as to the materials to be found on the property; the cross section thereof; the number of cubic yards of sand and gravel that could reasonably be recovered and removed therefrom (R. 292-316).

Douglas F. Larsen, materials engineer for the Utah State Road Commission, was called for the State. The witness testified that it would be necessary to drill four or five test holes per acre, following good engineering practice, to determine the nature of the materials thereunder; he testified as to drilling operations conducted by the State on the property; as to the striking of a "point of refusal" at 40 feet (R. 320), and as to encountering underground waters (R. 320). The witness further testified as to the analysis of the materials recovered from the drilling (R. 316-323). On cross examination the witness testified:

"Q. Now, Mr. Larsen you testified this morning that you would have to drill four or five holes on an acre to determine accurately how much sand and gravel was in there; is that correct?

"A. I said I think at least four or five.



"Q. Do you think it would be possible to determine the amount of sand and gravel in an acre, even with four or five holes?

"A. I think so, with a reasonable amount of accuracy.

"Q. *Actually, you would have to take it all out to determine exactly what was there, would you not?*

"A. If you were going to determine it that way, yes.

"Q. *The matter of determining the amount of sand and gravel is highly speculative, isn't that so?*

"A. Yes" (R. 324).

The State called Ezra C. Knowlton as its next witness. Mr. Knowlton was the Executive Vice President of the Utah Sand and Gravel Company, the largest such operation in the Salt Lake Valley (R. 343). The witness explained the difference between so called "muck sand" and "blending sand;" (R. 342) ; as to his company's sale of "muck sand" (R. 344). That:

"A. We have never sold as much as 5000 yards a year—I had better say, 5000 tons a year. We sell in tons.

"Q. Never more than 5000 tons a year from your plant?

"A. That's right—muck sand.

"Q. Now have you had occasion to examine the so-called Noble properties north of your plant there?

"A. Yes, I visited that property a few times.

"Q. Have you been on the property and noticed the nature of the deposit of the sand?

"A. Just in general.

"Q. Is that muck sand or is it blending sand?

"A. Mainly on the bottom, in my judgment, the lower levels are more nearly muck sand type. The higher levels, based upon my observations, are more of the blending sand type.

"Q. There is no big demand for this muck sand in the Salt Lake Valley?

"A. There have been no requests made of us for any large quantity of muck sand.

"Q. Do you anticipate there will be any need for large quantities of that sand?

"A. Not of that particular type, I don't" (R. 344).

The witness testified as to the price of land comparable to that of the Noble property:

"Q. Have you had an opportunity to purchase any land that is comparable, that is in the same vicinity of this Noble property?

"A. Once, in one case we had an offer made to us of land in that general neighborhood.

"Q. What was that offer?

"A. That was \$1000 per acre.

"Q. Did you accept the offer?

"A. No, sir.

"Q. Why not?

"A. We did not consider it valuable enough for our uses to justify making the purchase" (R. 346).

And, as to the manner in which a gravel pit should be developed in order to preserve abutting properties (R. 346, 347); as to the feasibility of excavating to a depth of 40 feet on the Noble properties (R. 348). The Court did not

permit the witness to testify as to preservation of the property to put it to its highest and best possible use. From the record:

“Q. What I mean, if he were to excavate to 40 feet, what value, if any, would the land have?

“A. Assuming that the land could be excavated 40 feet, in my judgment it would have no value for any other use. It would just be a hole in the ground, unless it were backfilled.

“Q. Now if it were to be backfilled, what would that cost, in relation to the value you might get out of removing that material?

“MR. MAW: I object to that on the ground, your Honor, that we are placing no value whatsoever on the hole in the ground, and are not proposing that it shall be filled. Our whole value is the sand and gravel in it, and we have not presented any evidence that we are asking for one penny for the land after the sand and gravel has been removed.

“MR. BUDGE: If the Court please, the State's theory is this, that when you appraise land—and we have asked our appraisers to do it according to the Rule Book and according to their training and education—when you appraise land you appraise its highest and best possible uses, and in that respect we want to know how much it would cost to re-fill this hole, because we think the land has a potentially higher and better use than a hole in the earth.

“THE COURT: If they do not claim it you have no reason to go into it.

“MR. BUDGE: We think the highest and best use is not to dig that hole there.

“MR. MAW: You are proving it has no value at all, apparently, to fill the hole, and we will agree with you. We are not going to fill the hole.

“THE COURT: The objection is sustained” (R. 348, 349).

On cross examination the witness said his firm was paying 10c per ton for blending sand as of July 22, 1955 (R. 352). The witness's company had on hand a supply of 100,000 tons of muck sand (R. 357); the company was selling blending sand for .04c a cubic yard in place (R. 358). On re-direct examination the witness testified that from his company's past experience the 100,000 yards of muck sand on hand was sufficient for a 20 year supply (R. 361). The witness's company declined Noble's offer to sell them sand at 20c a yard (R. 368).

The State then called Werner Kiepe to the stand and qualified the witness as an expert appraiser (R. 368, 369). The witness stated that he had been employed by the State Road Commission to appraise the Noble property to determine its fair market value (R. 369, 370) as of July 22, 1955 (R. 373); the witness gave his opinion as to the highest and best use of the property (R. 376, 378, 379); the witness testified as to the present value of \$1.00 which could not be “captured” for 15 years, that it would be 38c (R. 380, 381); the witness explained to the jury the mode and manner of his appraisal of the Noble property (R. 381-393) and stated his opinion as to the fair market value which a person willing to sell, but not required to sell, would sell to a person willing to buy, but not required to buy, as of the 22nd day of July, 1955 (R. 393). It was the witness's opinion that the fair market value of the whole of the properties was \$56,900 (R. 393).

C. Francis Solomon, Jr. called by the State and duly qualified as an appraiser of realty testified:

(a) That he had been employed by the State Road Commission to appraise the Noble property (R. 475).

(b) That his appraisal was based upon the "highest and best use" of the condemned property (R. 479).

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