1956

State of Utah v. Brack Howard Noble : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE RESPONDENTS AGREE WITH THE APPELLANTS CONTENTION THAT THE BURDEN OF SHOWING DAMAGES RESTS UPON THE LAND OWNER, AND THE JURY WERE SO ADVISED BY INSTRUCTIONS OF THE COURT, (R. 45):

INSTRUCTION NO. 6

“You are instructed that the burden of proving value, and the burden of proving damages, are burdens which the law puts upon the defendants. These burdens of proof are successfully carried by defendants only if you find that they have established the truth of their contentions by a preponderance of the evidence.

A “preponderance of the evidence” is defined as that amount of evidence which is more convincing as to its truth, or which convinces the mind of the jury that a proposition is more probably true than not true.

Therefore, if you believe that on a particular value the evidence is evenly balanced, then that value has not been proved, and you cannot award on that basis. The amount of

the market value that you find, must be supported by a preponderance of the evidence.”

The Utah Statute relative to compensation and damages and the assessment thereof as applied to a situation where the entire property is taken is as follows:

“78-34-10. Compensation and damages — How assessed. — The court, jury or referee must hear such legal evidence as may be offered by any of the parties to the proceedings, and thereupon must ascertain and assess:

(1) The value of the property sought to be condemned and all improvements thereon appertaining to the realty, and of each and every separate estate or interest therein; and if it consists of different parcels, the value of each parcel and of each estate or interest therein shall be separately assessed”

All of the witnesses testifying as to the value of the whole of the property arrived at their estimates by considering three general components of value of the Respondent's property:

- a. Value of the 595 feet of frontage along the highway for a depth of about 190 to 200 feet.
- b. Value of the sand and gravel and overburden.
- c. Value of the improvements.

All of the Respondent's witnesses used the computations made by Mr. Richards, the engineer, in determining the amount of sand and gravel, which figures were:

- a. Fine sand, 355,222 tons.

b. Sand and gravel mixture,	944,646 tons.
Total sand and gravel	<u>1,299,868 tons.</u>

Mr. Keipe, by his own observation determined that there were 286,668 cubic yards of sand and gravel, (R. 386). At this point it should be mentioned that some witnesses use yardage as measurement, and others use tonnage. Mr. Schoenfeld, the sand and gravel operator, testified that one cubic yard of material weights from 2,200 to 3,000 lbs., and the rule-of-thumb is that 1 yard of material is about $1\frac{1}{2}$ tons, (R. 234). So that Mr. Kiepe's estimate of 286,668 cubic yards is about 430,002 tons. Mr. Solomon estimated the overburden at 41,127 cubic yards (61,790 tons) and muck sand of 388,671 cubic yards (583,006 tons), (R. 478), making about 644,796 tons in all.

As to the value of the sand and gravel material, Mr. Schoenfeld testified that the fine sand was worth 25¢ per ton in place, and the remaining material would be worth 10¢ per ton in place, (R. 222); Mr. Howa stated the value was a minimum of 15¢ per yard for the entire run of material, (R. 268); Mr. Noble testified that the sand was worth 25¢ per ton in place, and the sand and gravel 15¢ per ton in place, (R. 171); Mr. Knowlton, the sand and gravel man called by the State testified, that he had bought blending sand from Foss Lewis in Bountiful, which is about 8 miles away for 10¢ per ton under and old 2 year contract, (R. 353), and that the hauling price is about 5¢ per ton-mile, and that location of sand and gravel property with respect to the market is an important item in connection with determining its value, (R. 359); Mr. Knowlton classified muck sand as being that material which is washed off from the washing of his other sand and gravel materials, but even this washed off muck

sand was sold by him for 30¢ a ton loaded on the trucks, (R. 356); Mr. Knowlton admitted that he had negotiated with Mr. Noble for the purchase of some material at the offered price of 20¢ per yard, (R. 353), and at no time did Mr. Knowlton make known to Mr. Noble that the reasons for discontinuing negotiations was a matter of price, (R. 367), and the only reason given was as set forth in exhibits 52 and 53 which is in part quoted in the Statement of Facts (supra). Mr. Kiepe placed a market value of 10¢ per cubic yard for all of the material in place, (R. 389); Mr. Solomon testified that the muck sand was worth 10¢ per cubic yard in place, (R. 481).

In summary, the jury in determining the value of the sand and gravel had the following testimony:

Respondent's Witnesses:

Fine Sand	355,222 tons @ .25	\$ 88,805.50
Sand & Gravel	944,646 tons @ .10	94,464.60
	1,299,868 tons Total	<u>\$183,270.10</u>

Mr. Kiepe:

Sand & Gravel	286,668 yards @ .10	\$ 28,666.80
	(430,002 tons)	
	But present cash value	\$ 17,690.00

Mr. Solomon:

Fine Sand	388,671 yards @ .10	\$ 38,867.10
Overburden	41,127 yards @ .04	1,645.08
	(644,796 tons)	<u>\$ 40,316.08</u>
	But present cash value	\$ 19,518.00

Mr. Kiepe and Mr. Solomon apparently calculated the

amount of material by estimating the amount within a cone shaped excavation leaving lateral support on four sides and going to a depth of about the level of the highway, in disregard of the evidence that by agreement and custom the only lateral support necessary would be that which adjoins the east side of the 200 foot commercial property. Mr. Knowlton, the Appellant's witness, testified that his firm had excavated to a depth of about 40 feet below the level of Highway 91 in the vicinity of the highway, (R. 352). Mr. Knowlton never did testify as to the market value of the material in place, but did state that he had been paying 10¢ per ton for the material at Bountiful, and hauling at a distance of 7 miles greater at a cost of 5¢ per ton-mile, which in itself was 35¢ per ton for haulage alone in excess of the haul which would have been required had he purchased the material from the Noble property, (R. 353 and 359).

The frontage property of the defendants consisted of 595 feet along U. S. Highway 91, together with a 50 foot right-of-way adjoining thereto, but the latter right-of-way was not a part of the litigation herein. All of the experts agreed that a good depth for commercial or industrial property would be from 190 to 200 feet East of the highway. As to the values placed upon the frontage property, the opinions were as follows:

Mr. Gaddis,	\$75.00 per front foot	\$44,625.00
-------------	------------------------	-------------

Mr. Rideout,	\$75.00 per front foot	\$44,625.00
--------------	------------------------	-------------

Mr. Keipe stated the property would be worth \$92.00 per front foot in 10 years from now making it \$54,740, but that the present worth is \$21,075.60. (R. 391).

Mr. Solomon, \$50.00 per front foot \$29,750.00

(R. 486), but (R. 489), he shows the total for the land is \$28,750.00 instead of \$29,750.00, (R. 489).

The improvements including the residence on the property had been blue printed in great detail by Mr. Howa, a Civil Engineer, who determined the replacement costs at a total of \$44,795.00, and that the depreciation on these improvements was \$4,000.00, making a replacement value less depreciation of \$40,795.00. Mr. Gaddis and Mr. Rideout in answer to the hypothetical questions placed to them, stated that from their general observation of the property during prior years, and from viewing pictures, and from considering the testimony of Mr. Howa that the replacement value was \$44,795.00 less \$4,000.00 depreciation; that the witnesses considered these matters in forming their opinion of the value of the whole property.

Mr. Kiepe testified that he had made an estimate of the cost of replacement of the improvements to check another method which he uses for valuation, (R. 370 and 385); that he estimated the replacement cost of the residence at \$15,300.00 and the depreciation of \$3,060.00 leaving a present replacement cost less depreciation of \$12,240.00 for the residence, (R. 404); however, rather than place a value on the improvements as such, the witness under his method of appraisal determined a rental income for 10 years of the property at \$2,700.00 per year which would have a present value of \$18,117.00. Mr. Solomon explained in detail his method of appraising the value of the improvements, and his procedure was to estimate the replacement costs and allow a reasonable depreciation, (R. 489 to 492). Mr. Solomon gave the deprec-

iated replacement costs of the improvements as follows:

	REPLACEMENT COST	DEPRECIATED REPLACEMENT VALUE
Home (R. 491)	\$15,400.00	\$10,797.00
Antique Repair Shop (R. 492)		1,878.00
Laundry Room (R. 492)		1,920.00
Antique Building (R. 492)		3,532.00
Trailer Court, sewage & power (R. 492)		3,200.00
Total		<u>\$21,267.00</u>

The foregoing total appears to be \$21,267.00, but Mr. Solomon had stated a total of \$21, 827.00, (R. 492). It is apparent that Mr. Solomon used the figure of \$21,827.00 for the improvements in coming up with his overall total of \$72,345.00, (supra 15). Mr. Solomon endeavored to explain the difference between fair market value and replacement cost, and did in fact distinguish between the two, but in this instance it is obvious that he himself considered the depreciated replacement cost as the market value.

The court instructed the jury as to evidence of replacement value as follows:

“You have heard evidence of “replacement value”. Replacement value is what new buildings would cost on today’s prices of the same type of materials, or it may be what second-hand buildings of the same type would cost, if they could be placed on the property. The defendants are not entitled to replacement values as such.

Depreciation was given to you as the measure of the extent of the wear and tear on the buildings. De-

preciation is not necessarily the difference between replacement cost and market value. You may, however, consider replacement costs and the depreciation figure as elements to be considered in determining what a willing buyer would have paid for the entire property, it being sold by a willing seller."

The detailed discussion concerning replacement costs and its relation to fair market value in the examination and cross examination of several of the witnesses would seem to have fully informed the jury that replacement costs can be considered in determining value, but are not necessarily conclusive thereof, and the fact that Mr. Solomon, the Appellant's witness, apparently relied entirely upon the depreciated replacement cost method, the jury could well have considered the values placed by Mr. Howa as being more exact because of his more detailed examination and determination of costs.

In summary the jury had the following to consider in connection with determining the fair market value of the property.

Respondents' witnesses:

Frontage: 595 feet	@ \$75.00	\$ 44,625.00
Improvements:		40,999.00
Sand & Gravel:		183,269.10
		<hr/>
		\$268,925.10

Mr. Noble testified that his opinion of the market value of the property was \$300,000.00.

Appellant's witnesses:

Mr. Kiepe:

a. Sand and gravel and overburden	\$14,540.00
-----------------------------------	-------------

b.	Sand and gravel where buildings are located	3,150.00
c.	Value of the land	21,075.00
d.	Rental income for 10 years at \$2,700.00 per year	18,117.00
		<hr/> \$56,882.00

Mr. Solomon:

a.	Frontage	\$28,750.00
b.	Right of Way	1,250.00
c.	Improvements	21,827.00
d.	Gravel area	19,518.00
		<hr/> \$71,345.00

From the evidence presented, the jury could well have found the fair market value of the Defendants' property to be in excess of \$268,000.00, but in its determination it considered the value of the property at \$150,000.00 which seems to be fully and amply supported by the evidence.

The Defendants are entitled to have the evidence, and all reasonable inferences therefrom, considered in the light most favorable to them. This court has repeatedly held that if there is any substantial evidence supporting the finding of the Trier of Fact it will not be disturbed on appeal. *Malstrom v. Consolidated Theatres Inc.*, 4 Utah 2nd 181, 290 Pacific 2nd 689; *Beck v. Jeppesen*, 1 Utah 2nd 127, 262 Pacific 2nd 760; and a great number of other cases decided by this court.

POINT II

THERE WAS NO ERROR IN ALLOWING EXPERTS TO TESTIFY AS TO THE MARKET VALUE OF THE PROPERTY WHERE THE OPINION OF THE EXPERT WAS BASED PARTLY ON HIS OWN OBSERVATION AND

PARTLY UPON INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY OTHERS, NOR WAS IT ERROR TO RECEIVE THE OPINION OF A WITNESS AS TO THE VALUE OF THE WHOLE PROPERTY BASED IN PART UPON HYPOTHETICAL QUESTIONS.

The procedure followed by the expert witnesses of the Defendants, was essentially the same procedure followed by the experts testifying for the Appellants as heretofore discussed, excepting that the experts for the Appellants undertook to determine for themselves certain technical data such as the quantity and quality of material, and by inquiry from others determined the price or value of such material. Mr. Gaddis and Mr. Rideout gave their own observation and in part upon a hypothetical question. The trial court properly instructed the jury in connection with the opinion of experts based upon hypothetical questions as follows:

INSTRUCTION NO. 24

“Some of the experts in testifying as to the value of all of the Noble property, based their opinions, in part, upon certain hypothetical questions; that is to say, their opinion was based upon the information and findings of others which the expert assumed to be correct. You are instructed that you give weight to the opinion of an expert based upon these assumptions, to the extent that the assumptions are supported by a preponderance of the evidence in this case.”

All of the experts acknowledged that the value of the whole property must be determined by consideration of its component parts. The Appellant's witness obtained their

information on those component parts with which they were not familiar by inquiry from persons outside of the courtroom, whereas the Respondent's experts based their opinions upon information of other experts which was given in open court under strict cross examination.

The Appellants cite *State v. Tedesco*, 4 Utah 2nd 248, as opposing the procedure used by the Respondents' expert witnesses. In that case, the objection was that the experts assigned the retail value to individual lots in a subdivision and multiplied the number of lots by the retail value without allowing for any costs; however, no such circumstance was present in the trial of the subject case since the values assigned to the various types of sand and gravel were values of the material in place, and the retail values of said materials were substantially greater as testified by Mr. Schoenfeld and Mr. Knowlton. Mr. Schoenfeld testified that he sold the fine sand for 75¢ per yard at the plant site after a loading cost of about 10¢ per yard, (R. 221).

The annotation on minerals in land as evidence of value in 156 ALR 1416 states that with remarkable unanimity the courts hold that in determining the compensation in eminent domain proceedings, the existence of valuable mineral deposits in the land taken, constitutes an element which may be taken into consideration if and insofar as it influences the market value of the land. The reason for the rule is that the measure of compensation in eminent domain proceedings is the market value of the land to be condemned as a whole with due consideration of **all the component parts** that make for its value. Then at page 1422 of said annotation, it states that if land containing minerals can be put to two uses, which are inconsistent, the owner is entitled to re-

cover for the more valuable use but not for both; but if the uses are not incompatible, both uses may be considered in fixing the market value. In the instant case there was no disagreement that the property was conducive to a commercial use as well as a sand and gravel business.

A well considered federal case dealing with the general problem of valuating property by considering the valuation of various part, is the case of *Cade V. United States*, 213 F. 2nd, 138, U. S. Court of Appeals, 4th Cir.

The landowner appealed from judgment of the district court contending the award was inadequate, and that the court erred in striking testimony of an expert who testified as to value of the whole of the land after giving valuation to the various parts, and that the court erred in excluding testimony as to value of a deposit of granite rock on land. In reversing the cause, the court held in part as follows:

(140) “. . . . the trial judge on motion of the government struck out his (expert witness) testimony on the ground that the overall value to which he had testified had been arrived at by adding together the values he had placed upon the various items.”

“This, we think, was error.”

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